

Statement of Environmental Effects

Installation of New Pool Complex, Amenities, Sunset Lounge, Reception Building, Minor Infrastructure Works and Modifications to Community Plan Reflections Holiday Park Forster Beach 1 Reserve Road Forster

November 2024

Table of Contents

1	Intro	duction	1
1.1		Summary	1
1.1		Preamble	2
1.2		Site & Locality Description	2
1.3		Existing Development	4
1.4		Context and Surrounding Land uses	4
2	Desc	ription of Proposal	4
2.1		General Description	4
2.2		Current Use of the Site	5
2.3		Heritage	6
2.4		Stormwater	6
2.5		Bushfire	6
2.6		Ecology	6
2.7		Social and Economic Impacts	6
2.8		Excavation/ Demolition/ Contamination	6
2.9		Access, Traffic and Parking	7
2.10		Services	7
2.11		Waste Management	7
3	Plan	ning Controls	3
3.1		Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979	8
3.1.1	L	Section 1.7 – Application of Part 7 of Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016	8
3.1.2	<u>)</u>	Section 4.46 – Integrated Development	Э
3.2		Provision of relevant SEPP	Э
3.3		Great Lakes LEP 2014 (GLLEP)14	4
3.4		Provision of Draft Environmental Planning Instruments1	6
3.5		Provisions of Relevant Development Control Plans1	6
3.6		Agreements & Provisions of Regulations etc	8
3.6.1	L	Planning Agreements	8
3.6.2	2	Regulations1	3
4	Impa	acts and Site Suitability2	1
4.1		Likely Impact of Development	1
4.2		Suitability of the Site	1
4.3		Submissions	1
4.4		The Public Interest	1
5	Conc	lusion2	1
6	Atta	chments23	3
6.1		Plan – Amended Community Plan	3
6.2		Plans – Site Plan Location of New Buildings	3
6.3		Plans – Pool and Amenities	3
6.4		Plans – Notification Plan	3
6.5		Reports – Cost Summary	3

Table of Figures

Figure 1: Locality Diagram Regional Context (Source: Nearmap)	3
Figure 2: Locality diagram Park located indicated by pink marker (source: Nearmaps)	3
Figure 3: Proposed location of new pool complex and reception building	4
Figure 4: Location of proposed sunset lounge	5
Figure 5: Location of adjacent listed heritage items	6
Figure 6: Imagery showing Coastal Use Area (Orange) and Coast Environment Area (Blue) Mapping	11
Figure 7: Site zoning map	14
Table 1: Relevant GLLEP Provisions	16
Table 2: Great Lakes DCP 2010 Analysis	18

1 Introduction

1.1 Summary

Site Details	
Address	1 Reserve Road Forster NSW 2428
Property Description	Lot 7361 DP 1128842 and Lot 44 DP 753168
Area	9.43 ha approximately
Local Government Area	Mid Coast Council (Great Lakes LEP)
Current Use	Holiday Park (Caravan Park)

	General Details
Applicant	Lands Advisory Services
Proposal	Installation of new pool complex, amenities, sunset lounge, reception building, minor infrastructure works and modification of existing community plan.
Application Type	Development Application
Level of Assessment	Local Application
Consent Authority	Mid Coast Council
Key Applicable Codes	Great Lakes LEP 2014 SEPP Resilience and Hazards SEPP Housing Great Lakes DCP Local Government (Manufactured Home Estates, Caravan Parks, Camping Grounds and Moveable Dwellings) Regulation 2021

1.1 Preamble

This Statement of Environmental Effects (SEE) has been prepared by Lands Advisory Services Pty Ltd (Landsas) to accompany a Development Application (DA) to Mid Coast Council (Council) seeking approval for the installation of a new pool complex and amenities and modification of the existing community plan at Reflections Forster Beach, 1 Reserve Road Forster, NSW (the site).

The purpose of this report is to describe the proposed development and review the relevant planning requirements relating to the proposal. It provides an assessment of the proposed development in terms of the Evaluation Criteria prescribed under Section 4.15 (1) of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979.*

In the preparation of this SEE for the Site and the locality has been considered, along with the survey plans produced for the one lot subdivision.

The merits of the proposal have been considered with reference to the relevant State, Regional and Local Council planning instruments, codes and policies.

The proposed development is considered appropriate and worthy of obtaining development consent.

1.2 Site & Locality Description

The Site is located at the end of Reserve Road with access to the Park at the junction of Reserve Road and Oyster Parade. The Park is part of a broader Crown land reserve and is located within walking distance to Forster Beach. The legal description of the Park is lot 7361 DP 1128842 and lot 44 DP 753168 and has an area of s part lot 136 in DP1160943 and has an area of 9.43 hectares.

The Site is currently being used as a holiday park containing tourist and camping sites. Location maps showing the Site in a regional and local context are set out below in Figures 1 and 2.



Figure 1: Locality Diagram Regional Context (Source: Nearmap)



Figure 2: Locality diagram Park located indicated by pink marker (source: Nearmaps)

1.3 Existing Development

Located on the Site is a holiday park known as Forster Beach Holiday Park, the holiday park is operated by Reflections Holiday Park. The Park currently has development approval (DA 2023/0973) for 235 short term sites.

1.4 Context and Surrounding Land uses

The Site is currently zoned RE1 Private Recreation under the *Great Lakes Environmental Plan 2014.* The Park forms part of a broader Crown Land Reserves which is also zoned RE1 Public Recreation. To the south and east of the site is residential zoned land. The Park is located within the township of Forster and is within walking distance and has direct access to all services as provided in the town.

2 Description of Proposal

2.1 General Description

This development proposal seeks approval for the installation of a new pool complex, amenities, sunset lounge, reception building, minor infrastructure works including new boom gates, visitor car parking and road upgrades and an update to the existing community plan.

The current approval for the Park allows for a total of 235 short term sites. The proposed location of the new pool complex and amenities block is at the entry to the Park bounded by Kingfish Avenue, Bonito Avenue and Salmon Parde as shown in figure 3. The placement of these structures also results in a modification to the existing community plan. The new



Figure 3: Proposed location of new pool complex and reception building

configuration results in an overall loss of 31 existing sites these are associated with the pool area and new entry arrangement. The new design provides for 9 new sites resulting in an overall loss of 22 short term sites with an overall remaining site count of 213 short term sites. As per attachment 6 we have provided an updated community (site) plan that reflects the layout of the Park post construction.

The sunset lounge will be located in the north section of the Park, see figure 4, the sunset lounge will provide an alternative recreational space for guests looking for a greater place to relax of during the day and of an afternoon and evening.



Figure 4: Location of proposed sunset lounge

The proposed new reception building is located at the entry to the Park and will provide improved facilities for park staff and visitors alike, see figure 3.

Details of all the new proposed facilities and associated infrastructure works are shown in the plans as provided in section 6.

These much need capital upgrades to the Park will provide for much needed improvements to the current tourism offerings in place at the park and will provide an overall improved visitor experience at Forster Beach.

2.2 Current Use of the Site

The sites subject to this development application have a long history of being used for a holiday park (caravan park). This proposal in no way impacts upon this current use. finalisation of this application.

2.3 Heritage

Neither the site nor any buildings or features contained on the land subject to this development application are listed as heritage items as per the Great Lakes Local Environmental Plan. In addition, there are no state or national heritage listing either.

The site is however adjacent to listed (local) heritage items as per the figure 4 below, the items are item 178 Pilot Hill and 182 Breakwater. The proposed development will in no way have any impact on these heritage items.



Figure 5: Location of adjacent listed heritage items

2.4 Stormwater

There will be no impact to current stormwater management arrangements in relation to the operations of the holiday park, the proposed amenities block will connect to the Parks existing stormwater system.

2.5 Bushfire

The area is not mapped as being bushfire prone.

2.6 Ecology

No vegetation or trees of any significance will be required to be removed to enable the installation of the camp kitchen and amenities block.

2.7 Social and Economic Impacts

Due to the low impact nature of this proposal this proposal will have no negative social or economic impacts.

2.8 Excavation/ Demolition/ Contamination

The proposal will involve excavation of up to 2.8m to enable the installation of the pool. A

Geotechnical Investigation Report has been prepared by Douglas Partners soil and ground water conditions at the site and detailing recommendations pre, during and post construction. The report concludes that ground water will likely be encountered with excavations below 1.3m and the likely present of acid sulphate soil conditions.

Key report recommendations include a requirement for dewatering during excavation and pool installation, shoring techniques during excavation, dewatering methods and a requirement for an acid sulphate soil management plan prior to the commencement of any excavations related to the installation of the pool. The report is provide as per section 6 of this application.

There is no demolition required as part of this proposal.

Given the existing approved land use activities on the Site there is an extremely low likelihood of any contamination being present on the site.

2.9 Access, Traffic and Parking

The Site currently has pedestrian and vehicular access from Reserve Road and Oyster Parade.

There is no change to site access, internal traffic movements, traffic use or parking as a result of this proposed development. The proposed development will not result in any additional traffic generation than what is already in place at the Park.

Visitor car parking sites including disability parking spaces comply with the Local Government (Manufactured Home Estate, Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds) Regulation 2021.

2.10 Services

The Park contains adequate services to support the proposed development.

2.11 Waste Management

There will be no changes to the existing wastewater systems that already exist on site as a result of this proposal.

3 Planning Controls

3.1 Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979

The *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979* (The Act) is the principle planning and development legislation in New South Wales.

In accordance with Section 1.3, the objectives of the Act are: -

- (a) to promote the social and economic welfare of the community and a better environment by the proper management, development and conservation of the State's natural and other resources,
- (b) to facilitate ecologically sustainable development by integrating relevant economic, environmental and social considerations in decision-making about environmental planning and assessment
- (c) to promote the orderly and economic use and development of land,
- (d) to promote the delivery and maintenance of affordable housing,
- (e) to protect the environment, including the conservation of threatened and other species of native animals and plants, ecological communities and their habitats,
- *(f)* to promote the sustainable management of built and cultural heritage (including Aboriginal cultural heritage),
- (g) to promote good design and amenity of the built environment,
- (*h*) to promote the proper construction and maintenance of buildings, including the protection of the health and safety of their occupants,
- *(i)* to promote the sharing of the responsibility for environmental planning and assessment between the different levels of government in the State,
- *(j) to provide increased opportunity for community participation in environmental planning and assessment.*

The stated objectives of the Act are satisfied by the proposed development as it:

- Will promote the social and economic welfare of the local community through the provision of tourist and recreational facilities;
- Creates additional jobs during the construction and operational phases;
- Utilises appropriate existing services; and
- Causes no adverse impacts on the environment.

3.1.1 Section 1.7 – Application of Part 7 of Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016

Due to low impact nature of this proposal and that no vegetation or significant trees are proposed to be removed it considered any impact on threatened species and/or endangered ecological communities would be negligible to non-existent. Therefore, assessment as per section 7.3 of the Biodiversity Conservation Act is considered to not be warranted.

3.1.2 Section 4.46 – Integrated Development

The application in our view does not trigger any integrated development requirements.

3.2 Provision of relevant SEPP

Section 4.15(1) of The Act requires consideration of all relevant State Environmental Planning Instruments at the Development Application Stage.

The proposed development has been prepared having regard to *State Environmental Planning Policy Resilience and Hazards, State Environmental Planning Policy Housing.* An assessment of the requirements of the relevant chapters of each SEPP is provided below.

State Environmental Planning Policy Resilience and Hazards Chapter 4 Remediation of Land

The SEPP Chapter 4 establishes State-wide provisions to promote the remediation of contaminated land. Clause 4.8 of the SEPP requires that a consent authority must not grant consent to a development if it has considered whether a site is contaminated, and if it is, that it is satisfied that the land is suitable (or will be after undergoing remediation) for the proposed use.

The subject site has a long history of use as a caravan park, hence as the development proposal only relates to the installation of two new buildings, we do not believe that are any concerns or issues regarding contamination.

State Environmental Planning Policy Housing – Part 9 Caravan Parks

SEPP Housing Part 9 Caravan Parks establishes policy measures for the orderly and economic use and development of land intended to be used for a caravan park. Clause 131 of the SEPP details the development consent requirements for caravan parks. This SEPP has no impact on the proposed development. Compliance with the SEPP is addressed in the table below.

Part 6 Caravan Parks

Clause	Comment
Clause 126 Objectives	The proposed development is consistent with the objectives of the SEPP in that the caravan park will cater for short term residents, benefits the social and economic welfare of the community which has been demonstrated as per section 2.7 of this report; the park design provides for appropriate community facilities commensurate of a Park this size; and has been designed with the protection and minimise of environmental impact in mind.
Clause 127 Land to which the SEPP applies	The SEPP applies to the subject site
Clause 128 Relationship to other Planning	Development consent is being sought for the installation of two new buildings.

Instruments	
Clause 129 Definition	Proposed use is consistent with the definition of caravan park
Clause 130	Caravan Parks are a permissible use with the RE1 Public Recreation zone
Clause 131 Development Consent Required for Caravan Parks	This application does not seek an approval for the use of any sites within the Park for long term residences; consent is sought for the installation of two new buildings and an amended community plan.
Clause 132 Subdivision of Caravan Parks for Lease Purposes	No subdivision is proposed as part of this development application
Clause 133 Matters to be considered by Council	This development application

State Environmental Planning Policy Resilience and Hazards Chapter 2 Coastal Management

The Coastal Management Act 2016, Section 5 classifies land within the coastal zone under the four following categories:

- The coastal wetlands and littoral rainforests area
- The coastal vulnerability area
- The coastal environment area
- The coastal use area

The aim of the SEPP Chapter 2 Coastal Management is to promote an integrated and coordinated approach to land use planning in the coastal zone in a manner consistent with the objects of the Coastal Management Act 2016, including management objectives for each coastal management area by:

- Managing the development in the coastal zone and protecting the environmental assets of the coast, and
- Establishing a framework for land use planning to guide decision making in the coastal zone
- Mapping the 4 coastal management areas that comprise the NSW coastal zone for the purpose of the definitions in the Coastal Management Act 2016

Part 2 of the SEPP than goes onto to define development controls for each of the above management areas.

The online spatial planning viewer shows that the subject property partly falls within the Coastal Use Area (CUA) and Coastal Environment Area (CEA), see figure 4 below. In assessment of the impacts of the development in relation to the SEPP is provided below.



Figure 6: Imagery showing Coastal Use Area (Orange) and Coast Environment Area (Blue) Mapping

Division 3 Coastal Environment Area

13(1) Development consent must not be granted to development on land within the coastal environment area unless the consent authority has considered whether the proposed development is likely to cause an adverse impact on any of the following:

1(a) the integrity and resilience of the biophysical, hydrological (surface and groundwater) and ecological environment	The proposed development is of a minor scale within an existing caravan park that will nil impact on the biophysical, hydrological and ecological environments.
1(b) coastal environmental values and natural coastal processes	It is not considered that the proposed development will have any impact on coastal environmental values and natural coastal processes.
1(c) the water quality of the marine estate (within the meaning of the Marine Estate Management Act 2014), in particular, the cumulative impacts of the proposed development on any of the sensitive coastal lakes identified in schedule 1	We are of the view the proposed development will have no impact on the water quality of the marine estate as it will connect to the existing stormwater network in place. Further there will be no direct runoff from the site to the waters of the marine estate.
1(d) marine vegetation, native vegetation and fauna and their habitats, undeveloped headlands	It is not considered the proposed development will have any impact on marine vegetation nor undeveloped headlands and rock platforms to the small area of mapped coastal environment area not containing any of these features and due to the

and rock platforms	removed location of the subject site from the marine environment.
1(e) existing public open spaces and safe access to and along the foreshore, beach, headland or rock platform for members of the public including persons with a disability	The development site is within an existing parcel of freehold land hence there will be on impact on open coastal spaces.
1(f) aboriginal cultural heritage, practices and places	An AHIMS search of the site has been conducted which revealed there no listed sites or places of Aboriginal Cultural Heritage. Further previous and current use of the site would not indicate the presence of aboriginal sites or places.
1(g) use of the surf zone	The site is not within the surf zone

13(2) Development consent must not be granted to the development on land which this applies unless the consent authority is satisfied that:

2(a) the development is designed, sited and will be managed to avoid an adverse impact referred to in subclause (1)	As per the points raised above the proposed development has been carefully designed and located to minimise harm and impact.
2(b) if that impact cannot be reasonably avoided – the development is designed, site and will be managed to minimise that impact	As per the above comment the development has been carefully designed and located to minimise harm and impact.
2(c) if that impact cannot be minimised – the development will be managed to mitigate that impact	See above comments

Division 4 – Coastal Use Area

14(1) Development consent must not be granted to development on land that is within the coastal use area unless the consent authority:

14(1)(a) has considered whether the proposed development is likely to cause an adverse impact on the following:

(i) existing, safe access to
and along the foreshore
area, beach, headland or
rock platform forNil impact, development is contained within existing operating
caravan park that is removed from is removed from the coastal
foreshore area.

members of the public.		
members of the public; including persons with a disability		
(ii) overshadowing, windNil impact, development is contained wholly within existingfunneling and loss ofcaravan park.views form public placesdevelopment is contained wholly within existingto foreshoresdevelopment is contained wholly within existing		
 (iii) the visual amenity Nil impact, development is contained wholly within caravan park. and scenic qualities of the coast, including coastal headlands 		
(iv) aboriginal cultural heritage, practices and placesAn AHIMS search of the site has been conducted which revealed there are no listed sites or places of Aboriginal Cultural Heritage. Further previous and current use of the site would not indicate the presence of aboriginal sites or places.		
(v) cultural and builtThe site does not contain any items of cultural and builtenvironment heritageenvironmental heritage hence there will no impact on such arising from this development.		
14(1)(b) is satisfied that		
(i) the development isThe development is within an existing caravan park thus avoiding any adverse impacts.designed, sited and willany adverse impacts.be managed to avoid andAdverse impact referred to in paragraph (a)		
(ii) if that impact cannotThe development is within an existing caravan park thus avoiding any adverse impacts.be reasonably avoided -any adverse impacts.the development isdesigned, sited and will managed to mitigate that impact		
(iii) if that impact cannotThe development is within an existing caravan park thus avoiding any adverse impacts.be minimised - theany adverse impacts.development will beany adverse impacts.managed to mitigatethat impact		
14(1)(c) has taken into account the surrounding coastal and built environments, and the bulk, scale and size of proposed development		
The development is within an existing caravan park thus avoiding		

	The development is within an existing caravan park thus avoiding any adverse impacts.
Division 5 General	
(15) Development in the coastal zone generally –	Due to the location of this development proposal, it will no way

development not increase risk of coastal hazard	increase the risk of coastal hazards
(16) Development in coastal zone generally – coastal management programs considered	The site is not subject to any actions identified in a draft and/or certified coastal management program

3.3 Great Lakes LEP 2014 (GLLEP)

Section 4.15(1) of The Act requires the consideration of all relevant Local Environmental Planning Instruments at the Development Application Stage.

The proposed development has been prepared having regard to GLLEP.

The Site is zoned RE1 Public Recreation pursuant to GLLEP.



Figure 7: Site zoning map

The RE 1 Public Recreation zone objectives are as follows:

- To enable land to be used for public open space or recreational purposes.
- To provide a range of recreational settings and activities and compatible land uses.
- To protect and enhance the natural environment for recreational purposes.

- To provide for a range of educational, environmental, community and cultural uses for the benefit of the community.
- To enable access to activities and businesses located within adjacent waterways

The current use of caravan park is permitted with development consent, the installation of pool complex and associated amenities is considered auxiliary to the operation of the holiday park.

Relevant provisions under the GLLEP are considered in the table below:

Clause	Clause Description	Relevance to Proposal		
Zoning	RE1 Private Recreation	Use is permissible within the zone		
5.21 Flood Planning		The park is mapped as being partially flood		
		prone with a 1% AEP 2100 flood level of 2.6m		
		and a flood planning level of 3.1m. The RL of		
		the proposed location of the amenities block		
		and camp kitchen is 3.922m, hence outside of		
		the flood planning zone.		
7.1 Acid Sulfate Soils	Class 5	The area subject to this proposal is mapped as		
		class 3 and 4 land (acid sulphate soils).		
		Despite this classification it is considered the		
		work is of a minor nature (installation of		
		footings), will involve the excavation of less		
		than 1 metre in depth and will not be likely to		
		lower the water table.		



Table 1: Relevant GLLEP Provisions

This development proposal is consistent with the above objectives and the relevant clauses of the GLLEP.

3.4 Provision of Draft Environmental Planning Instruments

Section 4.15(1) of the Act requires Council to consider the Provisions of relevant Draft Environmental Planning Instruments.

The Mid Coast Draft LEP has been placed on public exhibition with Clause 1.8A providing saving provisions relating to development applications.

Clause 1.8A If a development application has been made before the commencement of this Plan in relation to land to which this Plan applies and the application has not been finally determined before that commencement, the application must be determined as if this Plan (being the MidCoast LEP) had not commenced.

The site is currently zoned RE1 Public Recreation. The MidCoast LEP proposes no changes to this existing zone.

3.5 Provisions of Relevant Development Control Plans

Section 4.15(1) of the Act requires the consideration of Great Lakes Development Control Plan 2010 (GTDCP).

Specifically, Section 4.15(3A) clarifies the way in which a Development Control Plan (DCP) is to be considered when assessing and determining a development application under section 4.15 of the Act. In particular, this subsection clarifies that:

• If a development application does not comply with standards or performance criteria in the DCP, the consent authority should be flexible in applying those provisions and allow reasonable alternative solutions that achieve the objectives of those standards. Thus, consent authorities should not refuse a development

application purely based on noncompliance with a standard in the DCP.

• A consent authority should only consider the standards and performance criteria in a DCP in connection with a specific development application. This is to ensure consent authorities do not refuse development applications purely because it will set a precedent or is contrary to a precedent or established practice of the consent authority.

As such, the consent authority will be required to give less weight and significance to provisions of a DCP than those of an EPI and will no longer be permitted to place determinative weight on DCP controls because of their prior consistent application.

There are few specific GTDCP provisions that relate to the proposed development. A summary of relevant and significant GTDCP controls is provided below.

	•			
4.1 Ecological Impacts	No vegetation removal is required to enable this development application. In addition, the site of the proposed development is within an existing caravan park.			
4.2 Flooding	The caravan parks subject of this development application is partially mapped as being flood affected; the location of the proposed new swimming pool area is mapped as being within the flood planning area. The approximate RL for the part of the Park subject to this application is 3m with the FPL being 3.1m. Hence the risk from flooding is considered very minor.			
4.3 Coastal Planning Areas	This section is not applicable to this development proposal			
4.4 Effluent Disposal	The proposed buildings will connect to the Parks existing sewer system.			
4.5 Poultry Farms Buffer	Not relevant to this proposal			
4.6 Contaminated Land	Not relevant to this proposal.			
4.7 Bushfire	The site is not mapped as being bushfire prone.			
8 Heritage	No heritage items are contained within the boundaries of the caravan park. Two heritage items exist adjacent to the caravan par As the proposed development is wholly within the existing bounda of the caravan it is considered this will have no impact on the adjacent heritage items.			

Great Lakes DCP 2013 Compliance Table

Part 10 Car Parking, Access, Alternative and Active Transport	Proposed development will have nil impact on existing traffic conditions in and around the site as it does not involve any increase in site capacity. The development will in fact result in a loss of 10 short term sites.		
Part 11 Water Sensitive Design	The proposed new buildings will connect into the Parks existing stormwater system. The combined roof area of the two new buildings results in a less than 10% increase in the overall imperious area of the caravan park.		
Part 12 Vegetation Management	Not applicable to this proposal		
Part 13 Landscaping Requirements	Details on landscaping associated with the installation of the new buildings is provided in section 6 as part of the provided plans.		
Part 14 Waste Management	A waste management plans has been provided to support this development application.		
Part 15 Advertising and Signage	Consent is not being sought for the erection of advertising signs.		
Part 17 Manufactured Home Estates and Caravan Parks	The site subject to this development application is an existing approved caravan park. The addition post development consent to a new amenities and camp kitchen will not alter the caravan park in any way to cause it to be in contravention of this part of the DCP.		

Table 2: Great Lakes DCP 2010 Analysis

3.6 Agreements & Provisions of Regulations etc.

Section 4.15(1)(a) of the Act requires consideration of:

- any planning agreement entered into under Section 7.4
- the regulations

3.6.1 Planning Agreements

There is no planning agreement or draft agreements included in this proposal.

3.6.2 Regulations

This application will be subject to compliance with the *Local Government Act 1993* and the *Local Government (Manufactured Home Estates, Caravan Parks, Camping Grounds and Moveable Dwellings) Regulation 2005* (LG Regulation) *as they apply to the Site*. The LG Regulation provides standards for the design of manufactured home estates, caravan parks and camping grounds.

This development application will be subject to key clauses of the LG Regulation as it relates

to the design of caravan parks relevant clauses of the regulation are dealt with in the table below.

All building work will be carried out in accordance with Clause 98 of the EPA Regulations 2000 which requires the consent authority to consider the provisions of the Building Code of Australia.

Moveable Dwellings) Regulation 2021					
Clause	Response				
83 – Minimum size of caravan park	Complies				
84 – Community amenities	Complies				
85 – Size of dwelling sites and camp sites; short term sites must have a minimum area of 65m2 and camp sites 50m2 including a car space	All sites comply with the requirements of clause 85				
86 – Site Identification	The numbering of all sites are clearly identified				
87 – Dwelling sites to have a road frontage	All sites have the required road frontage				
88 – Setbacks of community buildings	Complies				
89 – Setbacks of dwelling sites and camp sites from road frontages	Complies				
91 – Separation Distances	Complies				
94 – Width of roads	Complies				
95 – Speed limits	Signs are installed limiting speed to not exceed 15 km per hour				
96 – Resident Parking	Each site has onsite car parking available				
97 – Visitor Parking	Complies				
98 – Visitor Parking for People with Disabilities	As per above comment; complies				
99 – Road Surfaces	Complies				
100 - Lighting	Complies				
101 – Water Supply	Complies				
102 - Sewerage	Complies				
103 - Drainage	Complies				

Local Government (Manufactured Home Estates, Caravan Parks, Camping Grounds and Moveable Dwellings) Regulation 2021

104 – Electricity Supply	Complies								
107 – Number of showers and toilets to be provided	Parks with over 200 dwelling sites and/or camp sites must be provided with facilities as per the approval for the caravan park. An analysis of the required showers and toilets has been undertaken based on 235 dwelling (short term) sites.								
	Clause	Facilitiy	Required	Available	Complies				
	107	Toilets Female	13	22	Y				
		Toilets Male	8	18	Y				
		Urinals	5	6	Y				
		Showers Female	11	12	Y				
		Showers Male	11	12	Y				
		Handbasin Female	7	13	Y				
		Handbasin Male	7	13	Y				
	108	Disablity Access	2	4	Y				
108 – Facilities for people with disabilities	Complies - the park contains 4 unisex disabled bathrooms.								
110 - Construction of shower block and toilets blocks	Complies								
111 – Proximity of dwelling sites to shower blocks and toilet blocks	The majority of the sites within the Park are within 100m of the Parks amenity blocks. Sites 219-224, LV18, LV19, 218 and 217 have been reserved for use by self-contained moveable dwellings.								
Clause 113 – 118 Laundry Facilities	An assessment against clause 113 to 118 is provided in the table below.								
	Clause	Facility	Required	Available	Complies				
	113	Washing Machines	8	9	Y				
	114	Laundry Tubs	4	6	Y				
	115	Dryers	3	5	Υ				
	117	Line Space	470	470	Y				
	118	Ironing	4	4	Y				
	The park is compliant against all clauses.								
Clause 126 – Garbage Removal	The Park has appropriate contracts in place for the collection and removal of garbage								
Clause 127 Fire Hydrants	Complies								
				Complies					
Clause 128 - Fire Hose Reels	Complies								

Table 3: LG Regulation Compliance Table

4 Impacts and Site Suitability

4.1 Likely Impact of Development

Section 4.15(1)(b) of the Act requires consideration of the likely impact of the development. Detailed impact analysis has been carried out in consideration of the GLLEP and GLDCP as noted above. The development proposal is considered to have very little impact as the installation of the new pool and associated amenities are a low impact development and within an existing caravan park. Further the modification of the community plan to reflect the installation of the new buildings again has no environmental impact.

Overall, we consider the impact of this development proposal to be negligible.

4.2 Suitability of the Site

Section 4.15(1)(c) of the Act requires consideration of the suitability of the Site.

Zoning

The Site is currently zoned as RE1 Public Recreation under GLLEP, the current use of the site as a caravan park is permitted with consent under this zoning. The installation of the pool complex, office and sunlounge and minor infrastructure works are ancillary to this use. The proposed community plan is compliant with the requirements of the Local Government (Manufactured Home Estates, Caravan Parks, Camping Grounds and Moveable Dwellings) Regulation 2021.

Therefore, the site is considered appropriate for the proposed development.

4.3 Submissions

Section 4.15(1)(d) of the Act requires assessment by Council following exhibition if required.

4.4 The Public Interest

Section 4.15(1)(e) of the Act requires the public interest to be considered. Issues of public interest relevant to this application are unknown at this stage.

5 Conclusion

This proposal seeks approval for the installation of new park facilities and modification to the existing community plan to reflect the new building installations.

The features within the proposal all comply with local and state policies and are consistent with the character of the area.

The proposal will not have any unacceptable impact on the site or the natural or build environment and is consistent with the current use of the site.

It is also considered that the proposal is not contrary to the public interest and is compliant with Council policies and regulation and as is worthy of approval by Mid Coast Council

6 Attachments

- 6.1 Plan Amended Community Plan
- 6.2 Plans Site Plan Location of New Buildings
- 6.3 Plans Pool and Amenities
- 6.4 Plans Notification Plan
- 6.5 Reports Cost Summary